
 
 

2100 B Street · Marysville, CA 95901 · (530) 634-6880 · FAX 634-6888 
www.yubasuttertransit.com 

 

MEETING NOTICE & AGENDA 
 
 
DATE: Thursday, August 17, 2017  
       
TIME: 4:00 P.M. 
         
PLACE: Yuba County Board of Supervisors Chambers  
 Yuba County Government Center 
 915 8th Street  

Marysville, California 
 
I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 

Cardoza, Didbal (Chair), Fletcher, Leahy, Pedigo, Sullenger, Whiteaker and Whitmore (Vice-Chair) 
 

II. Public Business from the Floor 
 

Members of the public may address the Authority on items of interest that are within the Authority's 
jurisdiction and are not on the agenda for this meeting.  Public comment regarding agenda items will be 
permitted as each agenda item is considered by the Board. 

 
III. Consent Calendar 
 

All matters listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and can be enacted in one motion. 
There will be no separate discussion of these items prior to the time the Board votes on the motion unless 
members of the Board, staff or public request specific items to be discussed or removed from the Consent 
Calendar for specific action. 
 
A. Minutes from the Meeting of July 20, 2017.  (Attachment) 
B. Disbursement List for July 2017.  (Attachment) 
C. Monthly Performance Report for July 2017.  (Attachment) 
D. Advertising Policy Amendment.  (Attachment) 

 
IV. Reports  

 
A. Preliminary Draft Passenger Policies & Procedures.  (Attachment) 
 
 RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the release of the Preliminary Draft Passenger Policies & 

Procedures as proposed or amended for public review and comment. 
 
B. Yuba-Sutter Transit Federal Title VI Plan Update.  (Attachment) 
      
 RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 8-17 approving the Title VI Plan Update as 

proposed or amended. 
 
C. Year-End System Performance Report for FY 2016/2017.  (Attachment) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Information only. 

  
  



D. Project & Program Updates. 
 

1. Route 1 Corridor Enhancement Plan – Public Workshop September 20, 2017 
2. Connect Card Electronic Fare Card Implementation 
3. New Service Brochures – Minimum Age for Senior Fare Eligibility Increases from 64 to 65 

on September 1st 
  

  RECOMMENDATION: Information only. 
 
V. Correspondence/Information 

 
VI. Other Business 
 
VII. Adjournment 
 

THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING IS SCHEDULED FOR THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2017 
AT 4:00 P.M. IN THE YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS 

 
 
 
 P:\Yuba-Sutter Transit Agenda Items\AGENDA ITEMS 2017\AUG 17, 2017 
 
 
 If you need assistance to attend the Yuba-Sutter Transit Board Meeting, or if you require auxiliary aids or services, e.g., 

hearing aids or signing services to make a presentation to the Board, please contact the Yuba-Sutter Transit office at 
(530) 634-6880 or (TTY) 634-6889 at least 72 hours in advance so such aids or services can be arranged. 



1 
 

AGENDA ITEM III – A 
 

YUBA-SUTTER TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
MEETING MINUTES 

JULY 20, 2017 
 
 

I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Director Didbal called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  
 
Present: Bradford (Alternate), Cardoza, Didbal (Chair), Leahy, Sullenger and Whitmore (Vice-Chair) 
 
Absent: Fletcher, Pedigo and Whiteaker 
 
II. Public Business from the Floor 
 

None 
 

III. Public Hearings 
 

A. Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Sections 5307, 5311, 5317 and 5339 Grant 
Applications for FY 2018. 

 
Martin stated that this is a routine annual public hearing that Yuba-Sutter Transit is required to 
hold to maintain eligibility for federal funding.  He continued to state that the staff report includes 
a summary of the federal funding that is expected to be received during the fiscal year and it is 
consistent with the recently adopted budget for FY 2018.  Director Didbal opened up the public 
hearing.  There was no public comment and Director Didbal closed the public hearing.   
 
Director Cardoza made a motion to authorize the federal funding applications as submitted.  
Director Bradford seconded the motion and it carried unanimously.      

 
IV. Consent Calendar 
 

Director Sullenger made a motion to approve the consent calendar with corrections.  Director 
Cardoza seconded the motion and it carried unanimously. 
 

IV. Reports  
   

A. Transit Advertising Program Contract Award. 
 

Martin stated that just one response was received to the Request for Proposal (RFP) for the transit 
advertising program.  That response, which is attached to the staff report, was from the incumbent 
provider Stott Outdoor Advertising.  After reviewing the submitted proposal, staff and the 
contractor have come to an agreement for some modifications to the proposal that are summarized 
in the attachment to the staff report. 
 



2 
 

Key among these modifications is the contractor’s exception to the Board added clause to extend 
the insurance and indemnity provisions to include the advertisers as this is not standard industry 
practice and would severely limit advertising sales.  Another major issue is that Stott’s proposal 
for a ten year contract included no capital investment on their part, but they have now agreed to an 
allowance for additional shelters and benches over the next ten years in addition to a commitment 
to install solar ad box lighting in at least half of all existing and new shelters.  Due to the expanded 
ad space on the bus exteriors, the new contract is expected to generate about $80,000 a year in 
revenue assuming 60 percent occupancy. 
 
Martin stated that staff is now recommending that the Board award the Transit Advertising 
Program Contract to Stott Outdoor Advertising under the proposed terms and conditions and 
authorize the execution of a new contract to be prepared by counsel consistent with the terms and 
conditions outlined in the staff report and accompanying documents.  Director Bradford inquired 
as to the discrepancy between the commission values for the benches and shelters compared to the 
bus exteriors.  Martin stated that is due to the maintenance costs associated with the street 
furniture.     
 
Director Cardoza made a motion to award the Transit Advertising Program Contract to Stott 
Outdoor Advertising under the proposed terms and conditions.  Director Leahy seconded the 
motion and it carried unanimously.             
 

B. Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) for FY 2018-FY 2022. 
 
Martin stated this is the annual Transportation Improvement Plan Program of Projects that staff 
brings to the Board each year following the adoption of the budget.  Martin noted that the Board 
packet includes both the proposed version along with the previously adopted version. 
 
Director Cardoza made a motion to approve the FY 2018 Capital Improvement Plan and the FY 
2018 – FY 2022 Transportation Improvement Plan Program of Projects as proposed.  Director 
Leahy seconded the motion it carried unanimously.            
 

C. Feather River Air Quality Management District (FRAQMD) Blue Sky Grant Projects for 
FY 2017/2018.   
 
Martin stated that staff expects to soon receive notice that applications are now being accepted for 
the next round Blue Sky Grants.  Martin added this item is brought to the Board early each year 
for feedback and input on possible project concepts.  After a review of the history of the program, 
Martin suggested that the first priority would be to continue the Discount Monthly Pass Program 
for another year at a value of approximately $135,000.  Martin added that bus stop improvements 
could be a second project such as the Simme-Seat project that was submitted, but not funded last 
year.  He noted that these seats are designed for locations where there is either no sidewalk or 
where a traditional bus stop bench would not fit.  He estimated that a request for $25,000 would 
provide for about 25 bus stops.  A third project would be to provide another $10,000 to support the 
2015 expansion of the Live Oak service from three to five days a week. 
 
Martin stated that absent any additional Board direction that staff would prepare formal grant 
applications for future authorization consideration.  Director Leahy favors the zero clearance 
seating as they would certainly be an improvement over having two chairs chained to a pole.  He 
stated that he would like to see the Live Oak service continue as well.  Director Cardoza also 



3 
 

supports the Live Oak expansion.  Martin added that the Live Oak grant only partially supports 
this service which is otherwise entirely funded by the City of Live Oak and passenger fares.  By 
consensus, the Board gave direction to staff to prepare three grant applications as proposed.                          

 
Off-Agenda Item: Targeted Green Infrastructure Fund (TFIF) Grant Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU). 

 
At the request of staff, Director Cardoza made a motion to include an off-agenda item regarding 
the TFIF Grant MOU because the need to take action was not known until after the agenda had 
been posted.  Director Bradford seconded the motion and it carried unanimously. 
 
Martin stated that the Board previously approved the submission of an application for this new 
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District program for which $80,000 was being 
made available on a lottery basis for bus stop improvement projects of up to $40,000 each.  Yuba-
Sutter Transit was drawn third and received full funding ($30,000) for the Johnson Park bus stop 
improvements so staff is now requesting Board authorization to execute the attached MOU. 
 
Director Leahy made a motion to authorize the execution of the SMAQMD MOU as proposed.  
Director Cardoza seconded the motion and it carried unanimously.      

 
V. Correspondence/Information  

 
None 
 

VI. Other Business 
   

None.   
  

VII. Adjournment 
 
 The meeting was adjourned at 4:29 p.m. 
 

THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING IS SCHEDULED FOR THURSDAY, AUGUST 17, 2017 
AT 4:00 P.M. IN THE YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS 

 
 
 
P:COMMON/YST AGENDA ITEMS/YST BOARD MINUTES/YST MINUTES 2017/YST MINUTES JULY 2017 



CHECK NO.        AMOUNT   VENDOR
EFT 7,743.80$         PERS HEALTH HEALTH INSURANCE
EFT 1,556.22$         PRINCIPAL MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE L/D/LTD INSURANCE
EFT 285.32$            CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE WATER
EFT 38.04$              CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE FIRE SUPPRESSION
EFT 989.57$            PG&E ELECTRIC
EFT 3,117.32$         PG&E ELECTRIC BILL #2
EFT 44.33$              PG&E GAS
EFT 182.82$            ATT - SECURITY LINE SECURITY LINE - JUNE
EFT 70.00$              AT&T - UVERSE INTERNET JUNE
EFT 801.38$            TPX COMMUNICATIONS TELEPHONE
EFT 112.70$            UTILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES SEWER
EFT 300.00$            CALPERS 457 PLAN EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION
EFT 322.32$            CARDMEMBER SERVICES RABOBANK CREDIT CARD
EFT 400.00$            FRANCOYTP-POSTALIA, INC. POSTAGE RESET
EFT 208.96$            ELAVON MERCHANT SERVICE FEE -  JUNE
EFT 22,353.00$       CALPERS UNFUNDED ACCRUED LIABLITY - ANNUAL LUMP SUM 
EFT 142.40$            PRIMEPAY PAYROLL FEE 
EFT 33,873.68$       PAYROLL PAYROLL

15609 156.17$            ADAM HANSEN 4TH QTR REIMBURSEMENTS
15610 175.00$            ALL SEASONS TREE & TURF CARE LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE 
15611 220.67$            CAPITOL DOOR SERVICE SERVICE ACTIVATION BAR
15612 13,618.46$       INTERSTATE OIL CO BUS FUEL
15613 147.71$            KEITH MARTIN 4TH QTR REIMBURSEMENTS
15614 3,967.00$         NATIONWIDE FACILITY INSURANCE 
15615 385.00$            SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT JUNE RT PASSES
15616 22.20$              SANDRA ANDERSON 4TH QTR REIMBURSEMENTS
15617 14,230.07$       SC FUELS BUS FUEL
15618 46.55$              SIMONE REED 4TH QTR REIMBURSEMENTS
15619 446.97$            STANLEY SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC. SECURITY SERVICES - JULY
15620 759.60$            STAPLES CREDIT PLAN OFFICE SUPPLIES 
15621 7,483.50$         SUTTER BUTTES COMMUNICATIONS INC SERVICE AGREEMENT & REPEATER FEE
15622 111.00$            SUTTER COUNTY LIBRARY JUNE COMMISSIONS
15623 950.00$            TRILLIUM SOLUTIONS ANNUAL WEB SUBSCRIPTION
15624 214.00$            YUBA COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES PROGRAM ANAYLST POSITION PROCESSING
15625 91.98$              YUBA COUNTY LIBRARY JUNE COMMISSIONS
15626 1,100.00$         R.C. JANITORIAL SERVICE JANITORIAL SERVICE
15627 15,061.37$       HUNT & SONS INC. BUS FUEL
15628 33.65$              AT&T FIRE LINE
15629 291.19$            ADVANCED DOCUMENT CONCEPTS INK CARTRIDGE FOR POSTAGE MACHINE
15629 227.00$            ADVANCED DOCUMENT CONCEPTS COPY MACHINE - JUNE
15630 1,210.00$         APPEAL DEMOCRAT GRAD AD - ADVERTISING
15631 50.00$              DALE WHITMORE BOARD MEETING 7/20
15632 450.00$            DIGITAL DEPLOYMENT WEB SERVICES - JULY
15633 875.00$            FLETCHER'S PLUMBING & CONTRACTING , INC REPAIR & REPLACE HOT WATER FAUCET LEAK
15634 50.00$              GARY BRADFORD BOARD MEETING 7/20
15635 14,140.82$       HUNT & SONS INC. BUS FUEL
15636 50.00$              MANNY CARDOZA BOARD MEETING 7/20
15637 50.00$              MICHAEL LEAHY BOARD MEETING 7/20
15638 51.95$              PETTY CASH REIMBURSE PETTY CASH
15639 50.00$              PREET DIDBAL BOARD MEETING 6/15 REPLACED LOST CHECK
15639 50.00$              PREET DIDBAL BOARD MEETING 7/20
15640 1,059.77$         QU.EST MAINTENANCE OF BUS STOPS/SHELTERS
15641 178.61$            QUILL CORPORATION JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
15642 1,476.00$         RICH, FUIDGE, LANE & BORDSEN, INC. LEGAL SERVICES
15643 50.00$              RON SULLENGER BOARD MEETING 7/20
15644 45.00$              SHELBY'S PEST CONTROL PEST CONTROL

YUBA-SUTTER TRANSIT 
DISBURSEMENT LIST
MONTH OFJULY 2017

PURPOSE



15645 446.97$            STANLEY SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC. SECURITY SERVICES - AUGUST
15646 754.97$            STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION FUEL TAXES
15647 584.25$            STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND WORKERS COMP INSURANCE
15648 384.29$            U.S. BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE COPIER LEASE
15649 62.48$              VERIZON CONNECT CARD WIRELESS

154,351.06$     

LAIF
TRANSFERS

NO LAIF TRANSFERS



Previous
Ridership: July-17 Fiscal YTD Fiscal YTD
Fixed Route 55,881 71,532 55,881 61,836
Dial-A-Ride 5,590 5,669 5,590 5,542
Commuter Express 9,025 9,859 9,025 9,111
Midday Express 969 1,027 969 899
Foothill Route 175 171 175 117
Live Oak Route 251 296 251 308
Wheatland Route 26 48 26 40

Total Ridership: 71,917 88,601 71,917 77,853

Vehicle Service Hours:
Fixed Route 4,213.65 4,260.47 4,213.65 4,254.32
Dial-A-Ride 1,998.64 2,039.65 1,998.64 1,926.46
Commuter Express 918.94 969.23 918.94 905.29
Midday Express 151.61 151.53 151.61 146.89
Foothill Route 70.23 82.29 70.23 75.27
Live Oak Route 66.88 71.94 66.88 70.14
Wheatland Route 30.73 38.63 30.73 37.63

Total VSH's: 7,450.68 7,613.73 7,450.68 7,416.00

Passengers Per Hour:

Fixed Route 13.26 16.79 13.26 14.53
Dial-A-Ride 2.80 2.78 2.80 2.88
Commuter Express 9.82 10.17 9.82 10.06
Midday Express 6.39 6.78 6.39 6.12
Foothill Route 2.49 2.08 2.49 1.55
Live Oak Route 3.75 4.12 3.75 4.39
Wheatland Route 0.85 1.23 0.85 1.06

Total Passengers Per VSH: 9.65 11.64 9.65 10.50

Previous Twelve 
Month Average

AGENDA ITEM III - C

JULY 2017 PERFORMANCE REPORT



JULY 2017 PERFORMANCE REPORT

13.26 

2.80 

9.82 

6.39 

2.49 3.75 
0.85 

16.79 

2.78 

10.17 

6.78 

2.08 
4.12 

1.23 

0.00
2.00
4.00
6.00
8.00

10.00
12.00
14.00
16.00
18.00

Fixed Route Dial-A-Ride Commuter
Express

Midday
Express

Foothill
Route

Live Oak
Route

Wheatland
Route

Passengers per VSH 
Current Month vs. Previous 12 Month 

Average 

July-17 Previous Twelve Month Average

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

Systemwide Ridership Per Month 
Last 12 Months vs. Prior Year 

Monthly
Boardings

Previous
Year
Monthly
Boardings



AGENDA ITEM III – D 
STAFF REPORT 

 
ADVERTISING POLICY AMENDMENT 

 
 
One proposal was received in response to the recent Request for Proposals (RFP) from potential 
contractors to provide advertising related services on bus stop shelters, benches and bus 
exteriors.  That proposal from the incumbent contractor, Stott Outdoor Advertising, took 
exception to a clause that had long been included in the adopted Yuba-Sutter Transit Authority 
Advertising Policy.  That clause specifically required that all advertising copy be reviewed and 
approved by the Transit Manager, or their designee, prior to display or publication.  Because this 
clause was never enforced upon the incumbent contractor and staff could still require the 
removal of any copy deemed unacceptable even after it was posted, the Board of Directors 
approved the award of the new contract to Stott Outdoor Advertising with a provision that 
language be added to the existing policy as shown below in underlined italics: 
 

Except as otherwise provided by contractual agreement, any agency, organization, 
contractor or vendor proposing to advertise on or in Yuba-Sutter Transit vehicles, 
equipment, real property or publication shall submit copies of proposed advertising text 
and graphics to the Transit Manager prior to its display or publication.  The Transit 
Manager or his/her designee will advise the contractor if the material is inconsistent with 
this policy within five (5) working days of the receipt of said material.   

 
This item is on the consent calendar because the Board has already considered this issue and 
awarded a contract based on this proposed change.  As a result, staff is now requesting Board 
approval of this revision to the Yuba-Sutter Transit Advertising Policy as proposed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Amend the Transit Advertising Policy as proposed. 
 
 
 
P:\yst agenda items\Advertising Contract Item III-D 8-17 Consent.doc 



1 
 

AGENDA ITEM IV – A 
STAFF REPORT 

 
PRELIMINARY DRAFT PASSENGER POLICIES & PROCEDURES 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Ensuring the safety and comfort of the public are among Yuba-Sutter Transit’s guiding 
principles.  Success in this area is largely dependent upon operating personnel and the traveling 
public both behaving in a mutually respectful and courteous manner.  Passenger behavior in and 
around transit facilities and vehicles is governed by applicable Federal and State laws including 
California Penal Code Section 640, Public Utilities Code Sections 99170 - 99171 and other 
related statutes.  Transit operators typically adopt formal passenger policies and procedures to 
establish the particular expectations for the system along with applicable enforcement provisions 
that are then broadly communicated internally and externally. 
 
While Yuba-Sutter Transit has established numerous passenger policies and specific enforcement 
procedures over the years, some have not been revisited in a generation and there is no 
comprehensive set of current agency policies, practices and procedures.  In October 2016, the 
Board of Directors received a report on a number of specific policy areas and how other transit 
operators had addressed them in their own passenger policies.  As a result, staff was directed to 
develop a preliminary draft local policy document for future Board consideration.  This process 
was delayed until recently due to the development and implementation of the Connect Card 
electronic fare card system and staff turnover, but a Preliminary Draft Passenger Policies & 
Procedures document is now attached for Board discussion and direction. 
 
PASSENGER POLICIES & PROCEDURES 
 
For some perspective, staff receives complaints from both operating personnel and the public on 
a number of issues.  The most common are related to fare payment (failure to pay the full fare or 
to provide acceptable proof of eligibility for a discount fare); use of priority seating for seniors 
and persons with disabilities (failure to yield seats for the securement of mobility devices); health 
and safety issues (smoking at bus stops, passenger hygiene, animals); and, unacceptable on-
board behavior (eating, drinking, taking up more than one seat, loud and/or profane 
conversations).   
 
These same issues appear to be common to other transit systems as well because public 
transportation users in a 2015 national survey identified their top four most annoying behaviors 
as: (1) listening to someone talk on their cell phone; (2) passengers refusing to yield their seat to 
someone who needs it more than they do; (3) people taking up extra seats with personal items; 
and, (4) people eating messy meals on board the vehicle.  Passenger policies and procedures 
typically address all of the above issues (and many more), yet they persist to some level in every 
operation, so it is clear that effective and appropriate enforcement is also important if we are to 
reach the desired level of compliance and service experience. 
 



2 
 

At the October 2016 meeting, the Board reviewed a worksheet on typical passenger issues and 
how they have been addressed by a number of other transit operators both big and small.  For 
each, staff provided a brief description of the issue, some local history on how the issue is now 
being addressed and a possible policy statement for consideration in a comprehensive local 
passenger policy statement.  Also discussed were the procedures necessary to enforce passenger 
policies, including a review of those that are now being used by Yuba-Sutter Transit and a 
number of other transit systems. 
 
As a result, staff was directed to proceed with the development of the attached Preliminary Draft 
Passenger Policies & Procedures statement, which is divided into three sections related to 
expected passenger conduct when boarding and riding the bus; enforcement and disciplinary 
procedures; and, general operational policies.  Staff is now seeking Board input and direction 
regarding this comprehensive document.  Because anything this important should be developed 
in a deliberate process, including the solicitation of early input from the public and those who 
advocate on their behalf, it was envisioned that this document would be circulated for comment 
before a final draft version would be presented for Board review and adoption consideration. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
 
Assuming Board concurrence, the Preliminary Draft Passenger Policies & Procedures document 
(as it may be amended at the meeting) will be posted on the agency website with an invitation for 
public comment that will also be highlighted in an upcoming newsletter.  It is expected that a 
final draft version could be prepared with the assistance of legal counsel for Board review and 
possible consideration by as early as the October meeting.  Once adopted, a summary of the key 
policies will be prepared for public notice and dissemination, while the complete adopted version 
would be posted on the agency website and otherwise made available upon request. 
 
Staff will be prepared at the meeting to discuss the preliminary draft Passenger Policies & 
Procedures document in detail. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the release of the Preliminary Draft Passenger Policies 

& Procedures as proposed or amended for public review and 
comment. 

 
 
 
P:\yst agenda items\Passenger Policies & Procedures Item IV-A 8-17.doc 
 
 
 
 



Preliminary Draft 

1 | P a g e  
 

Yuba-Sutter Transit Passenger Policies & Procedures 

I. Passenger Conduct 
Yuba-Sutter Transit wants you to enjoy your trip and arrive safely at your destination. The following 
policies and procedures have been established to promote the safe, convenient and efficient provision of 
transit services. 

Boarding the Bus 

1. Passengers must pay the applicable fare; display a valid pass or transfer; and, provide acceptable 
proof of eligibility for any discount fare at the time of boarding. Connect Cards, passes, tickets 
and transfers are not valid if mutilated, damaged or changed in any manner.  

2. Passengers must be able to personally lift and carry all items on board the bus in one trip. 
Passenger items, including utility carts, must remain firmly within passenger control at all times 
and not block the aisle, doorway or areas reserved for persons in wheelchairs or with other 
mobility aids. 

3. Passengers may bring strollers onto the bus as long as children are removed from the stroller and 
it is collapsed and stored in a manner that does not block aisles, doorways or areas reserved for 
persons in wheelchairs or with other mobility aids. 

4. Bicycles are allowed inside the bus only on the last trip of the day, provided that there is adequate 
interior space and the front mounted bike rack is full.  

5. Passengers should utilize seating when available, make use of hand rails and stanchions, and 
remain seated or otherwise secured until the bus comes to a full and complete stop. Federal law 
mandates that no passenger may remain standing in front of the standee line at the front of the bus 
while the bus is in motion.  

Bus Etiquette 

6. Passengers may not obstruct, hinder, interfere with, or otherwise disturb other passengers or the 
operation of the vehicle, nor engage in indecent, profane, boisterous, unreasonably loud, or 
otherwise disorderly conduct. Verbal or physical intimidation, harassment, or annoyance of 
transit personnel or other passengers is strictly prohibited.  

7. Passengers using wheelchairs will be allowed to board and exit the bus before other passengers. 
Areas of the bus designed for wheelchairs may be used by any customer until a wheelchair needs 
to be secured. Customers occupying priority seating will be asked to move in order to 
accommodate a customer using a wheelchair. Customers with disabilities and seniors have 
seating priority within designated areas.  

8. Passengers must maintain a reasonable standard of dress (e.g. shirt, shoes etc.) and personal 
hygiene that does not expose transit personnel or other passengers to unreasonable health and 
safety risks unless failure to comply is a result of disability, age, or a medical condition.  

9. Riding the system for more than one round trip without a defined destination is prohibited.  
10. Loitering or solicitation of any kind, whether verbal or through distribution or posting of written 

material, is prohibited in or within 50’ feet of any transit facility, bus stop, or vehicle without pre-
approval from Yuba-Sutter Transit management.  

11. Failure to comply with any lawful instructions or directions from operating staff; damage to any 
transit facilities, vehicles, or equipment; and theft is prohibited. 



Preliminary Draft 

2 | P a g e  
 

12. Consumption of food or beverages is prohibited on all services except when drinking non-
alcoholic beverages from a spill-proof container. Litter must be properly disposed of in the 
appropriate trash receptacles. 

13. Smoking, including the use of electronic and/or vapor devices, is prohibited on board or within 
20’ of a public transit vehicle or facility. Lighting an incendiary device (match, lighter or torch) is 
also prohibited.  

14. Laptops and other portable or handheld electronic devices may be used on board, provided that 
they do not disturb the driver or other passengers and headphones are used that limit the sound to 
the hearing of the individual. Please keep cell phone or other personal conversation volume to a 
minimum. Speaker mode may be used only if required due to disability, age or medical condition. 

Service Animals 

15. Animals are prohibited on the bus with two specific exceptions: 1) It is a guide, service, or signal 
dog as such terms are defined in California Civil Code §54.1, that has been specially trained to 
assist persons with disabilities, provided that it can be demonstrated that the animal is vaccinated 
and licensed pursuant to the provisions of applicable state and local ordinance, and is on a leash 
or under the effective control of the person transporting it; or, 2) It is in a completely enclosed 
and secured cage or carrying case small enough to fit on the person’s lap. Federal Department of 
Transportation regulations do not recognize companion, therapy or comfort animals as service 
animals.  
 

II. Enforcement Procedures 
Failure to comply with the Yuba-Sutter Passenger Code of Conduct may violate one or more of the 
following: California Penal Codes (CPC) 594, 640 or 640.5, or Public Utilities Code (PUC) 99170.  
 
In addition to any civil and criminal penalties that may apply, violators of the Yuba-Sutter Transit 
Passenger Code of Conduct are subject to the following penalties.  
  
A passenger that does not obey verbal commands from operating staff may be denied service. Minor 
infractions may result in a verbal warning from operating staff and if unheeded, a written warning may be 
issued. Multiple infractions may result in a suspension from all Yuba-Sutter Transit service for a 
minimum of 7 days.  

Individuals who commit major infractions such as intimidation, harassment, physical abuse; causing 
physical injury to a driver or other passenger; or damaging transit vehicles or equipment may be subject 
to immediate removal from the vehicle, prolonged suspension from Yuba-Sutter Transit service, and/or 
criminal prosecution.  

Review/Appeal of a Suspension 
 
An initial review of any suspension may be requested within 10 days of the suspension notice. The 
request should include all information pertinent to the suspension. The request may be made in person at 
the Yuba Sutter Transit Administrative Office or in writing to: 
 
 
 



Preliminary Draft 

3 | P a g e  
 

Transit Manager 
Yuba-Sutter Transit Authority 
2100 B Street 
Marysville, CA 95901 
(530) 634-6880 FAX (530) 634-6888 
info@yubasuttertransit.com 

 
The Transit Manager will review available information to determine if the suspension from service is 
justified.  Based on the review, the Transit Manager will enforce or revoke the suspension. If not satisfied 
with the outcome, a written appeal of a suspension should be directed to: 
 

Board of Directors 
Yuba-Sutter Transit Authority 
2100 B Street 
Marysville, CA 95901 

 
The Board of Directors will seek to resolve the matter in a manner mutually agreeable to all parties 
concerned. An individual seeking an appeal of a suspension shall have the right to present any evidence 
relevant to the matter. The decision of the Board of Directors is final.  
 

III. Operational Policies 
 
Lost and Found 
 
If you believe you have lost an item on the bus, please contact the Yuba-Sutter Transit Administrative 
Office at (530) 634-6880 the following business day. Please provide a description of the item including 
time, location and route information for when and where it was lost. Found, non-perishable items will be 
kept for a maximum of 30 days and may only be picked up in-person at the Yuba-Sutter Transit 
Administrative Office. Yuba-Sutter Transit does not assume responsibility for any lost or found items.  
 
Refunds and Exchanges 
 
Yuba-Sutter Transit does not issue any refunds or exchanges for pass products, tickets, cash fares or 
Connect Card products. All paper fare products are non-transferable and will not be replaced if lost, stolen 
or destroyed.  Lost, stolen or damaged Connect Cards may be replaced at the Yuba-Sutter Transit 
Administrative Office for a fee.  
 
Comments and Complaints 
 
Comments or complaints regarding Yuba-Sutter Transit or its contractor may be submitted verbally by 
phone at (530) 634-6880; electronically at info@yubasuttertransit.com; or in person or in writing at the 
Yuba-Sutter Transit Administrative Office at 2100 B Street, Marysville, CA 95901. 
 

mailto:info@yubasuttertransit.com
mailto:info@yubasuttertransit.com


 
 

AGENDA ITEM IV - B 
STAFF REPORT 

 
YUBA-SUTTER TRANSIT FEDERAL TITLE VI PLAN UPDATE 

 
 
In accordance with Section 601 of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Federal statute 
provides that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or 
activity receiving Federal financial assistance.  Under Title VI, the U.S. Department of 
Transportation (DOT) has the responsibility to provide oversight of recipients and to enforce 
their compliance with Title VI, to ensure that recipients do not use DOT funds to subsidize 
discrimination based on race, color, or national origin. 
 
Title 49 CFR Section 21.9(b) requires all recipients of Federal funds to document their 
compliance with DOT’s Title VI regulations by submitting a Title VI Program to their Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) regional civil rights officer once every three years or as otherwise 
directed by FTA.  Yuba-Sutter Transit’s Title VI Program was last updated in 2014. 
  
For all recipients (including sub-recipients), the Title VI Program must be approved by the 
recipient’s Board of Directors or appropriate governing entity or official prior to submission to 
FTA.   Recipients are required to submit a copy of the board resolution, meeting minutes, or 
similar documentation with the Title VI Program as evidence that the Board of Directors or 
appropriate governing entity or official has approved the Title VI Program.  FTA will review and 
concur or request the recipient provide additional information. 
  
The attached draft Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program document has been prepared in 
accordance with FTA Circular 4702.1B, Title VI Requirements and Guidelines for FTA 
Recipients dated October 1, 2012.   The direction, guidance and procedures in the document are 
intended to ensure that the level and quality of public transportation service is provided in a 
nondiscriminatory manner, promote full and fair participation in public transportation decision-
making without regard to race, color, or national origin, and ensure meaningful access to transit-
related programs and activities by persons with limited English proficiency. 
 
Staff will be prepared to discuss the draft Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program in detail.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 8-17 approving the Title VI Plan update as 

proposed or amended. 
    



 YUBA-SUTTER TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
 RESOLUTION NO. 8-17 
 

ADOPTION OF THE YUBA-SUTTER TRANSIT TITLE VI PROGRAM 
AS REVISED AUGUST 17, 2017 

 
 
WHEREAS, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Federal statute provides that no person shall, 

on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, 
be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or 
activity receiving Federal financial assistance; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Under Title VI, the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) has the responsibility 

to provide oversight of recipients and to enforce their compliance with Title VI, to 
ensure that recipients do not use DOT funds to subsidize discrimination based on 
race, color, or national origin; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Title 49 CFR Section 21.9(b) requires all recipients of Federal funds to document 

their compliance with DOT’s Title VI regulations by submitting a Title VI Program 
to their Federal Transit Administration (FTA) regional civil rights officer once every 
three years or as otherwise directed by FTA; and, 

 
WHEREAS, The Title VI Program must be approved by the recipient’s Board of Directors or 

appropriate governing entity prior to submission to FTA: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Yuba-Sutter Transit Authority Board of Directors 
does hereby adopt the Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program as revised August 17, 2017 and does 
hereby authorize the Transit Manager to certify same by the following vote: 
 

Ayes: 
 

Noes: 
 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY INTRODUCED, PASSED AND 
ADOPTED BY THE YUBA-SUTTER TRANSIT AUTHORITY AT THE REGULAR MEETING 
THEREOF HELD ON AUGUST 17, 2017. 
 
 

                                                                        
       Preet Didbal, Chairman of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
                                                                  
Sandra Anderson 
Secretary to the Board 
  
P:\RESOLUTIONS\Resolution 8-17 Title VI Program August 2017.doc 



 

 

 

  

 

 

DRAFT 
Title VI Program 

Proposed August 17, 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yuba-Sutter Transit Authority 

2100 B Street 

Marysville, CA 95901 

Phone: (530) 634-6880 

www.yubasuttertransit.com 

http://www.yubasuttertransit.com/


Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 2 
 

Contents 
 

Section 1:  Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Policy and Complaint Procedures ................................................... 4 

Title VI Policy Statement ........................................................................................................................... 4 

Applicability............................................................................................................................................... 5 

Definitions ................................................................................................................................................. 5 

General Requirements and Guidelines ..................................................................................................... 6 

Environmental Justice Requirements ....................................................................................................... 7 

Limited English Proficient (LEP) Individuals and Public Participation Requirements ............................... 8 

Service Standards and Policy Requirements ............................................................................................. 9 

Complaint Procedures and Appeals .......................................................................................................... 9 

Procedures for Investigating Complaints ............................................................................................ 10 

Efforts to Contact Complainant .......................................................................................................... 10 

Completion of Investigation ................................................................................................................ 10 

Appeal to Chair.................................................................................................................................... 11 

Appeal Process .................................................................................................................................... 11 

Timeline Waiver .................................................................................................................................. 11 

Filing a Title VI Complaint with FTA Office of Civil Rights ................................................................... 11 

Complaint Acceptance ........................................................................................................................ 12 

Investigations ...................................................................................................................................... 12 

Administrative Closure ........................................................................................................................ 13 

Deficiencies with Title VI Compliance ..................................................................................................... 13 

Administration of Regulation .................................................................................................................. 14 

Section 2:  Public Participation Plan ........................................................................................................... 15 

Purpose of the Plan ................................................................................................................................. 15 

Approach to Public Participation ............................................................................................................ 15 

Major Service/Fare Change Policy .......................................................................................................... 15 

Outreach Requirements and Activities ................................................................................................... 16 

Outreach to Engage Minority and Limited English Proficient Populations............................................. 16 

Section 3:  Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Plan ....................................................................................... 18 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................ 18 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 3 
 

Plan Summary ......................................................................................................................................... 18 

Four-Factor Analysis ................................................................................................................................ 18 

Language Assistance Plan (LAP) .............................................................................................................. 21 

Section 4:  Service Standards and Policies .................................................................................................. 24 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................ 24 

Service Standards .................................................................................................................................... 24 

Service Policies ........................................................................................................................................ 28 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

Exhibit A   Yuba-Sutter Transit Notice to the Public of Rights under Title VI 

 

Exhibit B   Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Discrimination Complaint Forms and Instructions 

 

Exhibit C Table 1, Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Data; Statewide, Sutter/Yuba and Census 

Designated Places within Yuba-Sutter Transit Service Area  

 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 Resolution No. 8-17 of the Yuba-Sutter Transit Authority Adopting the Title VI Program, 

August 17, 2017 

Appendix 2  List of Title VI Related Complaints/Lawsuits Filed Against the Yuba-Sutter Transit 

Authority 

Appendix 3 Statement of the Racial Breakdown of Membership on Non-Elected Boards, Councils or 

Committees  

Appendix 4 Title VI Assurances, Dated August 31, 2011 

  



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 4 
 

Section 1:  Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Policy and Complaint Procedures 

 

Title VI Policy Statement 
 

The Yuba-Sutter Transit Authority (Yuba-Sutter Transit) is committed to ensuring that no person is 

excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination under 

any of its programs, activities, or services on the basis of race, color or national origin.  All persons, 

regardless of their citizenship, are covered under this regulation.  In addition, Yuba-Sutter Transit 

prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin in its employment and business 

opportunities. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will not condone retaliation against an individual for his/her involvement in 

asserting his/her rights pursuant to Title VI or because he/she filed a Complaint or participated in an 

investigation under Title VI, and /or this regulation. 

As a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) fund recipient, Yuba-Sutter Transit will ensure that its 

programs, policies and activities comply with the Department of Transportation (DOT) Title VI 

Regulations of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will ensure that the level and quality of its transportation service is provided without 

regard to race, color or national origin. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will promote the full and fair participation of all affected populations in the 

transportation decision-making process. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will make good faith efforts to achieve environmental justice as part of its mission by 

identifying and addressing, as appropriate, disproportionately high and adverse human health or 

environmental effects of its programs, activities, and services on minority populations and low-income 

populations within Yuba-Sutter Transit’s service area as provided herein. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will ensure that Limited English Proficient (LEP) individuals have access to Yuba-

Sutter Transit’s programs, activities, and services. 

In compliance with Title 49 CFR Section 21.9(d), Yuba-Sutter Transit will provide information to the 

public regarding its obligations under DOT’s Title VI regulations and apprise members of the public of 

the protections against discrimination afforded to them by Title VI. 

  



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 5 
 

Applicability 
 

This policy is applicable to all Yuba-Sutter Transit employees, members of the public and all contractors 

hired by Yuba-Sutter Transit. 

Failure of a Yuba-Sutter Transit employee to follow this policy and procedure may subject such 

employee to disciplinary action up to and including employment termination. 

 

Definitions 
 

Adverse Effect means having a harmful or undesired effect. 

Discrimination refers to any act or inaction, whether intentional or unintentional, in any program or 

activity of a Federal aid recipient, subrecipient, or contractor that results in disparate treatment, 

disparate impact, or perpetuates the effects of prior discrimination based on race, color, or national 

origin. 

Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons are individuals for whom English is not their primary language 

and who have a limited ability to speak, understand, read, or write English.  It includes people who 

reported to the U.S. Census that they do not speak English well or do not speak English at all. 

Low-Income Population means any readily identifiable groups of low-income individuals who live in 

geographic proximity, and if circumstances warrant, geographically dispersed transient persons (such as 

migrant workers or Native Americans) who will be similarly affected by a proposed DOT program, policy, 

or activity. 

Minority Individuals 

a) American Indian and Alaska Native, which refers to people having origins in any of the original 

peoples of North and South America (including Central America), and who maintain tribal 

affiliation or community attachment. 

b) Asian, which refers to people having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, 

Southeast Asia, or the Indian subcontinent. 

c) Black or African American, which refers to people having origins in any of the Black racial groups 

of Africa. 

d) Hispanic or Latino, which includes people of Cuban, Mexican, Puerto Rican, South or Central 

American, or other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race. 

e) Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islanders, which refers to people having origins in any of the 

original people of Hawaii, Guam, Samoa, or other Pacific Islands. 

National Origin means the particular nation in which a person was born, or where the person’s parents 

or ancestors were born. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 6 
 

Race means a group of people united or classified together on the basis of common history, nationality, 

or geographic distribution. 

Recipient means any public or private entity that receives Federal financial assistance from FTA, 

whether directly from FTA or indirectly through a primary recipient. This term includes sub recipients, 

direct recipients, designated recipients, and primary recipients.  The term does not include any ultimate 

beneficiary under any such assistance program. 

Retaliation Any adverse action taken against another individual because of his/her participation in the 

Complaint, investigation, or hearing relating to this policy or the provision of federal or state law. 

Vital Documents are documents that convey information that critically affects the ability of the 

customer to make informed decisions about his/her participation in the program (e.g., public notices, 

consent forms, Complaint forms, eligibility rules, notices pertaining to the reduction, denial or 

termination of services or benefits, right to appeal, and notices informing customers of the availability of 

free language assistance). 

 

General Requirements and Guidelines 
 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will carry out its programs, activities, and services in compliance with Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Act of 1964.  Yuba-Sutter Transit or any of its employees will not, on the grounds of race, 

color or national origin, exclude any person from participating in, deny the benefits of, or subject 

him/her to discrimination under any Yuba-Sutter Transit programs, services, or activities. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit or any of its employees will not, on the grounds of race, color or national origin: 

a) Provide any service, financial aid, or benefit that is different from that provided to others 

b) Subject an individual to segregation or separate treatment 

c) Restrict an individual in the enjoyment of any advantage or privilege enjoyed by others 

d) Deny any individual service, financial aid, or benefits under any Yuba-Sutter Transit programs, 

services, or activities 

e) Treat individuals differently in terms of whether they satisfy admission or eligibility 

requirements 

f) Deny an individual the opportunity to participate as a member of a planning or advisory body 

Yuba-Sutter Transit shall evaluate significant system-wide service and fare changes at the planning and 

programming stages to determine whether these changes have a discriminatory impact on low-income 

and Limited English Proficiency individuals.  This applies to major service changes that affect 25 percent 

or more of system-wide service hours or miles. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit schedules regular, public meetings of its Board of Directors to ensure that 

individuals are afforded an opportunity to participate in transportation decisions. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 7 
 

Yuba-Sutter Transit’s legal counsel will maintain a list (a minimum of four years in active status) of any 

Title VI investigations, Complaints, or lawsuits filed which allege Yuba-Sutter Transit discriminated 

against a person or group on the basis of race, color, or national origin.  This list will include, at a 

minimum: 

a) The date the investigation, Complaint, or lawsuit was filed 

b) A summary of the allegation(s) 

c) The status of the investigation, Complaint, or lawsuit 

d) Any actions or corrective actions taken by Yuba-Sutter Transit in response to the investigation, 

Complaint or lawsuit. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will keep the public informed of the protections against discrimination afforded to 

them by Title VI and Yuba-Sutter Transit’s obligations under Title VI by posting a Title VI Notice (Exhibit 

A) on the agency’s website, in transit vehicles, in bus shelters and in public areas of the agency’s 

administrative office.  The Title VI Policy Statement (see page 4) and the Complaint Form (Exhibit B) will 

also both be posted on Yuba-Sutter Transit’s website at www.yubasuttertransit.com and available at the 

Yuba-Sutter Transit administrative offices. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will take responsible steps to ensure meaningful access to the benefits, services, 

information and other important portions of its programs, activities and services for individuals who are 

Limited English Proficient (LEP).  Notices detailing Yuba-Sutter Transit’s Title VI obligations and 

Complaint procedures shall be translated into languages other than English, as needed, consistent with 

the DOT LEP Guidance and Yuba-Sutter Transit’s Language Assistance Plan. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will provide information, upon request from FTA, in order to investigate Complaints 

of discrimination, or to resolve concerns about possible noncompliance with Title VI. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will submit its Title VI Program to the FTA’s Regional Civil Rights Officer once every 

three years to ensure compliance with Title VI Requirements. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will ensure that minority and low-income individuals have meaningful access to 

Yuba-Sutter Transit programs, activities and services. 

 

Environmental Justice Requirements 
 

Yuba-Sutter Transit shall integrate an environmental justice analysis into its National Environmental 

Protection Act (NEPA) documentation of construction projects.  Yuba-Sutter Transit is not required to 

conduct environmental justice analyses of projects where NEPA documentation is not required.  Yuba-

Sutter Transit will consider preparing an environmental assessment (EA) or environmental impact 

statement (EIS) to integrate into its documents the following components: 

http://www.yubasuttertransit.com/


Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 8 
 

a) A description of the low-income and minority population within the study area affected by the 

project, and a discussion of the method used to identify this population (e.g., analysis of Census 

data, direct observation, or a public involvement process) 

b) A discussion of all adverse effects of the project both during and after construction that would 

affect the identified minority and low-income populations 

c) A discussion of all positive effects of the project that would affect the identified minority and 

low-income populations, such as improvements in transit service, mobility, or accessibility 

d) A description of all mitigation and environmental enhancement actions incorporated into the 

project to address the adverse effects, including, but not limited to, any special features of the 

relocation program that go beyond the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Act and address 

adverse community effects such as separation or cohesion issues; and the replacement of the 

community resources destroyed by the project 

e) A discussion of the remaining effects, if any, and why further mitigation is not proposed 

f) For projects that traverse predominantly minority and low-income and predominantly non-

minority and non-low-income areas, a comparison of mitigation and environmental 

enhancement actions that affect predominantly low-income and minority areas with mitigation 

implemented in predominantly non-minority or non-low-income areas 

 

Limited English Proficient (LEP) Individuals and Public Participation 

Requirements 
 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will seek out and consider the viewpoints of minority, low-income and Limited 

English Proficient (LEP) populations in the course of conducting public outreach and involvement 

activities.  Yuba-Sutter Transit’s public participation strategy will offer early and continuous 

opportunities for the public to be involved in the identification of social, economic and environmental 

impacts of proposed transportation decisions. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will ensure that individuals have access to its programs, activities and services by 

developing and carrying out the language plan herein.  Yuba-Sutter Transit will continually assess the 

language assistance needs of the population to be served. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will use the following four (4) factors to determine what measures must be 

undertaken to provide reasonable and meaningful access to LEP individuals: 

a) Languages likely to be encountered and the number or proportion of LEP persons in the eligible 

service population likely to be affected by the program, activity, or service 

b) Frequency with which LEP individuals come into contact with Yuba-Sutter Transit programs, 

activities, and services 

c) Importance of the program, activity, or service provided by Yuba-Sutter Transit to LEP 

individual’s lives 

d) Resources needed to provide effective language assistance and costs 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 9 
 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will make every effort to employ bilingual staff to provide Spanish-speaking 

interpretation at its Administrative office and within its customer service/dispatch department to assist 

LEP individuals with questions and trip planning. 

 

 

Service Standards and Policy Requirements 
 

FTA requires all fixed route transit providers of public transportation to develop quantitative standards 

for the following indicators.  Individual public transportation providers will set these standards which are 

applicable to each individual agency rather than across the entire transit industry. 

 Vehicle load for each mode: Generally expressed as the ratio of passengers to the number of 

seats on a vehicle, relative to the vehicle’s maximum load point. For example, on a 40-seat bus, 

a vehicle load of 1.3 means all seats are filled and there are approximately 12 standees. Transit 

providers can specify vehicle loads for peak vs. off-peak times, and for different modes of 

transit.  

 Vehicle headways for each mode: The amount of time between two vehicles traveling in the 

same direction on a given line or combination of lines.  

 On-time performance for each mode: A measure of runs completed as scheduled.   

 Service availability for each mode: A general measure of the distribution of routes within an 

agency’s service area. 

 Yuba-Sutter Transit’s service standards and policies are detailed in Section 4 of this document. 

 

Complaint Procedures and Appeals 
 

How to File a Title VI Complaint with Yuba-Sutter Transit: 

Any person who believes that he/she, or as a member of any specific class of individuals, has been 

subjected to discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin with respect to Yuba-Sutter 

Transit programs, activities, services, or other transit related benefits, may file a written Complaint with 

Yuba-Sutter Transit.  A Complaint may be filed by the individual or by a representative.  A Complaint 

must be filed within 180 days after the date of the alleged discrimination, but Complainants are 

encouraged to submit Complaints as soon as possible.  Yuba-Sutter Transit will promptly investigate all 

Complaints filed under Title VI, pursuant to this Regulation. 

A Complaint must include the following information: 

1. A Complaint must be in writing and signed and dated by the Complainant or his/her 

representative before any action can be taken. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 10 
 

2. A Complaint shall state, as fully as possible, the facts and circumstances surrounding the alleged 

discrimination, including the name and address of the Complainant, the date, time and location 

of the incident. 

3. The Complaint shall include a description of the program, activity or service on which the 

alleged discrimination occurred. 

The Complaint Form can be used to file a Title VI Complaint with Yuba-Sutter Transit.  A Complaint Form 

will be made in an accessible format upon request.  A Complaint Form can be requested/obtained by the 

following: 

 Electronic download from the Yuba-Sutter Transit website at www.yubasuttertransit.com 

 By calling Yuba-Sutter Transit at (530) 634-6880 (TTY 634-6889) 

 By picking up a Complaint form during normal business hours, Monday through Friday, at the 

Yuba-Sutter Transit Administrative Offices, 2100 B Street, Marysville, California, 95901. 

Upon receipt of a completed Complaint Form, it shall be forwarded to the Transit Manager or his/her 

designee as soon as practicable but within no later than two (2) business days of receipt.  The Transit 

Manager shall provide a copy of the Complaint to the Chair of the Board of Directors regarding the 

program, activity or service that is identified as being out of compliance. 

 

Procedures for Investigating Complaints 

 

The Transit Manager or his/her designee shall promptly investigate the alleged Complaint and shall 

prepare a written response as soon as practicable, but within no later than ten (10) business days of 

his/her receipt of the Complaint.  The Transit Manager or his/her designee may consult with appropriate 

staff in the preparation of his/her response to the Complaint. 

 

Efforts to Contact Complainant 

 

The Transit Manager or his/her designee shall make efforts to speak (meeting or by telephone 

conversation) with the Complainant, at which time the Complainant may give written or oral evidence 

supporting the allegation that his/her rights under Title VI have been violated.  The Transit Manager or 

his/her designee shall review and consider in the response prepared by the Transit Manager or his/her 

designee, all the information provided by the Complainant, if any, and any other evidence available 

regarding the allegations of the Complaint.  The Transit Manager or his/her designee shall prepare a 

written report of his/her findings and if corrective action is required, a timetable for the completion of 

such action. 

 

Completion of Investigation 

 

As soon as it is practicable, but no later than twenty (20) business days following receipt of the initial 

http://www.yubasuttertransit.com/


Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 11 
 

Complaint, the Transit Manager or his/her designee shall inform the Complainant of his/her findings and 

any corrective action to be taken as a result of the Complaint together with the timetable for 

completion of such action. 

 

Appeal to Chair 

 

If the Complainant is not satisfied with the findings and/or action of the Transit Manager or his/her 

designee, then the Complainant may file his/her Complaint with the Chair of the Yuba-Sutter Transit 

Board of Directors or with the FTA’s Office of Civil Rights. 

 

Appeal Process 

 

If the Complainant chooses to file his/her Complaint with the Chair of the Yuba-Sutter Transit Board of 

Directors, then the Complaint and any supporting documentation should be submitted within five (5) 

business days of his/her receipt of the results of the Transit Manager’s investigation.  Complaint 

submissions to the Chair of the Yuba-Sutter Transit Board of Directors should be made by providing all 

relevant documentation to the Transit Manager at the Yuba-Sutter Transit Administrative offices during 

normal business hours.  Upon review of the filing, the Chair of the Yuba-Sutter Transit Board of Directors 

shall notify the Complainant of what actions, if any, will be taken as a result of the review by the Chair 

within ten (10) business days of the Chair’s notification that the Complainant is not satisfied with the 

results of the Transit Manager’s investigation.  The decision of the Chair of Yuba-Sutter Transit Board of 

Directors shall be final. 

 

Timeline Waiver 

 

Any timeline set forth herein may be extended by the Transit Manager and/or Chair of the Yuba-Sutter 

Transit Board of Directors upon a showing of good cause. 

 

Filing a Title VI Complaint with FTA Office of Civil Rights 

 

Any person who believes that he/she or as a member of any specific class of individuals, has been 

subjected to discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin, with respect to Yuba-Sutter 

Transit’s programs, activities, or services, or other transit related benefits, may file a written Complaint 

directly with the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).  A Complaint may be filed by the individual or by a 

representative.  A Complaint must be filed within 180 days after the date of the alleged discrimination 

unless the time for filing is extended by FTA.  FTA will promptly investigate all Complaints filed under 

Title VI in accordance with DOT regulations 49 CFR 21.11(b) and 21.11 (c).  FTA may delay its 

investigation if the Complainant and the party complained against agree to postpone the investigation 

pending settlement negotiations. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 12 
 

A. A Complaint must include the following information:  A Complaint must be in writing and signed 

and dated by the Complainant or his/her representative before any action can be taken. In cases 

where a Complainant is unable or incapable of providing a written statement, but wishes FTA or 

DOT to investigate alleged discrimination, a verbal Complaint of discrimination may be made to 

the FTA Director, Office of Civil Rights.  If necessary, the Civil Rights Official will assist the person 

in converting the verbal Complaint into writing.  All Complaints must, however, be signed by the 

Complainant or his/her representative. 

 FTA Civil Rights Office Address: 

Federal Transit Administration Office of Civil Rights 

Attn: Title VI Program Coordinator 

1200 New Jersey Avenue, S.E. 

East Building, 5th Floor-TCR 

Washington, DC 20590 

TTY: 1-800-877-8339 

Voice: 1-866-377-8642 

FTA.ADAAsistance@dot.gov 

B. A Complaint shall state, as fully as possible, the facts and circumstances surrounding the alleged 

discrimination, including the date, time and location of the incident.  The Complaint shall include 

a description of the program, activity or service on which the alleged discrimination occurred. 

 

Complaint Acceptance 

 

Once a Complaint has been accepted by FTA for investigation, FTA will notify the recipient that it is the 

subject of a Title VI Complaint and ask the recipient to respond in writing to the Complainant’s 

allegations.  If the Complainant agrees to release the Complaint to the recipient, FTA will provide the 

agency with the Complaint, which may have personal information redacted at the request of the 

Complainant.  If the Complainant does not agree to release the Complaint to the recipient, FTA may 

choose to close the Complaint. 

 

Investigations 

 

FTA will make a prompt investigation whenever a compliance review, report, Complaint, or any other 

information indicates a possible failure to comply with DOT’s Title VI regulations. The investigation will 

include, where appropriate, a review of the pertinent practices and policies of the recipient, the 

circumstances under which the possible noncompliance with DOT’s Title VI regulations occurred, and 

other factors relevant to a determination as to whether the recipient has failed to comply with DOT’s 

Title VI regulations. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 13 
 

Following the investigation, FTA’s Office of Civil Rights will transmit to the Complainant and Yuba-Sutter 

Transit one of the following letters based on its finding: 

1. Letter of Finding (Compliance) indicating FTA did not find a violation of DOT’s Title VI 

regulations.  This letter will include an explanation of why FTA did not find a violation.  If 

applicable, the letter may include a list of procedural violations or concerns, which will put the 

recipient on notice that certain practices are questionable and that without corrective steps, a 

future violation finding is possible. 

2. Letter of Finding (Noncompliance) indicating the recipient is in violation of DOT’s Title VI 

regulations.  The letter will include each violation referenced to the applicable regulation, a brief 

description of proposed remedies, notice of the time limit on coming into compliance, the 

consequences of failure to achieve voluntary compliance, and an offer of assistance to the 

recipient in devising a remedial plan for compliance, if appropriate. 

 

Administrative Closure 

 

FTA will administratively close Title VI Complaints before a resolution is reached where (1) the 

Complainant decides to withdraw the case; (2) the Complainant is not responsive to FTA’s requests for 

information or to sign a consent release form; (3) FTA has conducted or plans to conduct a related 

compliance review of the agency against which the Complaint is lodged; (4) litigation has been filed 

raising similar allegations involved in the Complaint; (5) the Complaint was not filed within 180 days of 

the alleged discrimination; (6) the Complaint does not indicate a possible violation of 49 CFR part 21; (7) 

the Complaint is so weak, insubstantial, or lacking in detail that FTA determines it is without merit, or so 

replete with incoherent or unreadable statements that it, as a whole, cannot be considered to be 

grounded in fact; (8) the Complaint has been investigated by another agency and the resolution of the 

Complaint meets DOT regulatory standards; (9) the Complaint allegations are foreclosed by previous 

decisions of the Federal courts, the Secretary, DOT policy determinations, or the U.S. DOT’s Office of 

Civil Rights; (10) FTA obtains credible information that the allegations raised by the Complaint have been 

resolved; (11) the Complaint is a continuation of a pattern of previously filed Complaints involving the 

same or similar allegations against the same recipient or other recipients that have been found factually 

or legally insubstantial by FTA; (12) the same Complaint allegations have been filed with another 

Federal, state, or local agency, and FTA anticipates that the recipient will provide the Complainant with a 

comparable resolution process under comparable legal standards; or (13) the death of the Complainant 

or injured party makes it impossible to investigate the allegations fully. 

 

Deficiencies with Title VI Compliance 
 

Compliance Reviews will be conducted periodically by FTA, as part of its ongoing responsibility pursuant 

to its authority under 49 CFR 21.11(a). 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 14 
 

If FTA determines that Yuba-Sutter Transit is in noncompliance with Title VI, it will provide a Letter of 

Finding that describes FTA’s determination and requests that Yuba-Sutter Transit voluntarily take 

corrective action(s) which FTA deems necessary and appropriate. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will submit a remedial action plan including a list of planned corrective actions and, 

if necessary, sufficient reasons and justification for FTA to reconsider any of its findings or 

recommendations within 30 days of receipt of FTA’s Letter of Finding. 

 

Administration of Regulation 
 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will integrate the provisions within its Title VI Program into all programs, activities, 

and services provided by Yuba-Sutter Transit. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will integrate the Title VI Program into its policies and procedures. 

  



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 15 
 

Section 2:  Public Participation Plan 

 

Purpose of the Plan 
 

As an FTA grant recipient, Yuba-Sutter Transit complies with the public participation requirements of 49 

U.S.C. Sections 5307(b) (requires programs of projects to be developed with public participation) and 

5307(c)(1)(I) (requires a locally developed process to consider public comment before raising a fare or 

carrying out a major reduction in transportation service). 

The content and considerations of Title VI, the Executive Order on LEP, and the DOT LEP Guidance shall 

be integrated into Yuba-Sutter Transit’s public participation process.  This document describes the 

proactive strategies, procedures, and desired outcomes that underpin Yuba-Sutter Transit’s public 

participation activities. This plan provides guidelines for involving the public in Yuba-Sutter Transit 

planning efforts to ensure that all groups are represented and their needs considered.  Yuba-Sutter 

Transit will make these determinations based on a demographic analysis of the population(s) affected, 

the type of plan, program, and/or service under consideration, and the resources available. 

 

Approach to Public Participation 
 

The fundamental objective of public engagement programs is to ensure that the concerns and issues of 

those with a stake in transportation decisions are identified and addressed in the development of 

policies, programs and projects being proposed in their communities.  As projects vary in time and size, 

the public participation process may vary for each, as well as the extent of public participation.  The 

following outlines tools and strategies to ensure constructive, productive dialogue that will lead to 

practical decisions benefitting all members of the community, including low-income, traditionally 

underserved and limited English proficient populations. 

 

Major Service/Fare Change Policy 
 

Yuba-Sutter Transit shall maintain an open and participative process including the consideration of 

public comment before a fare increase or major service reduction.  Public input is solicited while 

proposals are under consideration.  Affected community members are notified before the 

implementation of any major service changes or fare increases. 

It is the intent of Yuba-Sutter Transit to comply with the Federal Public Comment on Service Change and 

Fare Change policy cited in 49 U.S.C. Section 5307(c)(1)(I).  For the purpose of this section, Yuba-Sutter 

Transit’s definitions of a major service change and/or fare change is as follows: 

Major Service Change:  A change in service that is equal to or greater than 25 percent of any route or 

service. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 16 
 

Fare Change:  Any increase of any amount compared to the existing fare. 

In order to insure maximum opportunity for community input and involvement in the decision making 

process for major service changes or fare changes, Yuba-Sutter Transit adheres to the following, at a 

minimum: 

 Provide a thirty (30) day advance notice of a public hearing to consider the proposal in 

appropriate local and/regional publications as appropriate. 

 Provide customer information regarding the fare or service change proposal and the process for 

public comment on board service vehicles. 

 Conduct at least one (1) formal public hearing to solicit public input and consider 

recommendations to the proposed fare or service change.  The hearing includes a staff 

presentation of proposed changes and the opportunity for testimony from any interested 

individual in attendance. Minutes of the hearing are recorded. 

 Following the conclusion of the public hearing, the Yuba-Sutter Transit Board of Directors will 

consider both the staff recommendations and the public comment before making the final 

decision regarding the proposed fare or service change by a simple majority vote.  The effective 

date of any approved fare or service change shall be at least ten (10) days after the date of the 

Board action. 

 

Outreach Requirements and Activities 
 

The following activities are intended to serve as guidelines for minimum levels of outreach to ensure 

that affected populations in the Yuba-Sutter Transit service area have equal access and opportunity to 

participate in transportation planning and decision-making processes.  These also provide strategies for 

soliciting input and engaging various communities. 

 Notice for public events may include posters, email blasts, media releases to local papers, the 

Yuba-Sutter Transit website, or other means as appropriate and as time and funding allow. 

 To the extent possible, notices will be posted at least one (1) week prior to the public event. 

 Notices may be posted at the Yuba-Sutter Transit administrative offices, on buses and at bus 

shelters as is appropriate, and at key community centers as deemed appropriate. 

 Comments will be accepted at public outreach events, via email, by mail, and by phone to 

ensure that all populations have the opportunity to participate. 

 

Outreach to Engage Minority and Limited English Proficient Populations 
 

 Yuba-Sutter Transit will continue cultivating relationships with community agencies that serve 

LEP populations. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 17 
 

 Public outreach may include attending already existing community meetings and gatherings, 

such as school meetings, farmers markets, faith-based events, and other community activities in 

order to invite participation from LEP populations who may not attend hosted public events. 

 Yuba-Sutter Transit will ensure that non-English language interpretation will be available at any 

public meeting or workshop, as is appropriate and necessary 

 Notices will be made bilingual or Spanish language notices will be developed and posted with 

English notices, as deemed necessary. 

 Spanish-language notices will be posted on vehicles that have been identified as key routes used 

by an LEP population and at bus shelters that have been identified as key destinations of LEP 

populations, if such information exists. 

 Event information on Yuba-Sutter Transit’s website will be posted in English and Spanish, as 

deemed necessary. 

 Yuba-Sutter Transit will distribute event information to community groups and agencies that 

work with LEP populations, if such contacts exist. 

 As identified in its Language Assistance Plan, Yuba-Sutter Transit will contract to provide 

language assistance for customers and callers that are non-English speaking, as deemed 

necessary. 

 When it is appropriate or necessary, Yuba-Sutter Transit will insure non-English language 

interpretation in additional languages is available. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will continue assessing the language needs of citizens in its service area through its 

Language Assistance Plan.  At such time, as additional groups with limited English proficiency reach 

significant mass, Yuba-Sutter Transit will review this plan and its strategies to engaging with non-English 

speaking populations. 

The public participation process will be augmented with specific outreach activities appropriate for the 

particular projects; such as additional public workshops, focus groups and surveys.  As funding allows, 

multiple public hearings or workshops may be held at different times to accommodate varying 

schedules.  As is possible, public participation events will be held at central locations close to a bus stop. 

These projects may also require the development of special materials such as fact sheets, newsletters, a 

project webpage, and additional media releases. 

  



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 18 
 

Section 3:  Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Plan 
 

Introduction 
 

Yuba-Sutter Transit is a joint powers agency formed in 1975 by the Counties of Yuba and Sutter and the 

Cities of Marysville and Yuba City for the purpose of providing public transportation services to the 

residents of the Bi-County area.  Yuba-Sutter Transit offers a broad range of public transit services 

including fixed route, paratransit, rural and intercity commuter services. 

The Yuba-Sutter Transit Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Plan has been developed in accordance with 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; DOT’s implementing regulations, and Executive Order 13166, 

“Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency”.   This LEP Plan outlines the 

reasonable steps Yuba-Sutter Transit shall take to ensure meaningful access to benefits, services, 

information and other important portions of its programs and activities for individuals who are limited-

English proficient. 

 

Plan Summary 
 

As defined in Executive Order 13166, LEP persons are those who do not speak English as their primary 

language and have limited ability to read, speak, write or understand English.  This plan outlines how to 

identify a person who may need language assistance; the ways in which assistance may be provided; 

how to notify LEP persons that assistance is available; how staff monitors, evaluates and updates the 

language access plan; and, staff training that may be required. 

In order to prepare this plan, Yuba-Sutter Transit first undertook the U.S. Department of Transportation 

(U.S. DOT) four-factor LEP analysis which considers the following factors: 

1. The number or proportion of LEP persons in the service area who may be served or are likely to 

encounter a Yuba-Sutter Transit program, activity or service. 

2. The frequency with which LEP persons come in contact with Yuba-Sutter Transit programs, 

activities or services. 

3. The nature and importance of programs, activities or services provided by Yuba-Sutter Transit to 

the LEP population. 

4. The resources available to Yuba-Sutter Transit and overall cost to provide LEP assistance. 

A summary of the results of the Yuba-Sutter Transit four-factor analysis is in the following section. 

Four-Factor Analysis 
 

1. The number or proportion of LEP persons in the service area who may be served or are likely to 

encounter a Yuba-Sutter Transit program, activity or service. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 19 
 

The data source for this analysis is the 2011-2015 American Community Survey (ACS) Census.  For 

comparison and analysis purposes, Table 1 includes LEP data for the State of California; Sutter and Yuba 

Counties both individually and collectively; and, Census Data Places (CDP) within the two counties that 

are served by Yuba-Sutter Transit services of any kind.  In terms of Census data, LEP is defined as 

persons age 5 and over for whom English is not their primary language and speak English less than very 

well, not well, or not at all. The Yuba-Sutter Transit service area population does have a slightly higher 

percentage of LEP persons than the two counties as a whole and that area will be the focus of this 

analysis. 

As shown in Exhibit C, the Bi-County area population speaks English at a significantly higher percentage 

than the state population as a whole (64.7 percent vs. 56.1 percent).  Conversely, service area residents 

who speak languages other than English represent a similarly significant percentage less than the state 

population as a whole (35.3 percent vs. 43.9 percent).  While LEP individuals as a percentage of the total 

population in the service area is slightly lower than that seen statewide (15.4 percent vs. 18.8 percent), 

the percentage of LEP persons among those that speak languages other than English is more similar 

(43.7 percent vs. 42.9 percent).  

In raw numbers, the data indicate that 18,953 people age five and over in the Yuba-Sutter Transit 

service area speak English “less than very well, “not well,” or “not at all.”  Of those, 59.4 percent are 

Spanish speakers; 29.2 percent speak other Indo-European languages; and, 11.0 percent speak Asian or 

Pacific Island languages.  Compared to the statewide data, the percentage of the service area population 

of LEP persons is similar for Spanish language speakers; many times higher for those who speak other 

Indo-European languages and less than half as much for those who speak Asian and Pacific Islander 

languages.  

2. The frequency with which LEP persons come in contact with Yuba-Sutter Transit programs, activities 

or services. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit assessed the frequency with which staff and drivers have, or could have, contact 

with LEP persons.  This includes surveying vehicle operators, dispatch and administrative staff regarding 

the frequency of contact with LEP individuals.   As the primary front-line employees, drivers report 

having the most contact with Spanish speaking, LEP individuals in the course of normal fixed route 

operations.   Incoming calls received from LEP individuals seeking general information, trip planning 

assistance and passenger materials/documents are routed to bi-lingual administrative staff.  Typical 

phone requests include the following: 

 Requests for general service information/assistance 

 Local, fixed route schedule and fare inquiries 

 Dial-A-Ride reservation requests 

To date, the most frequent contact between LEP persons is with bus drivers and administrative staff that 

either field incoming phone calls or handle walk-in customers at the front counter. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 20 
 

3. The nature and importance of programs, activities or services provided by Yuba-Sutter Transit to 

the LEP population. 

 

The vast majority of LEP persons in the Yuba-Sutter Transit service area (85.9 percent) reside within the 

Yuba City/Marysville/Olivehurst/Linda Urbanized Area where most of Yuba-Sutter Transit’s service is 

provided (82.7 percent of all vehicle service hours operated) in the form of local fixed route and demand 

response services.  These two services provided just under one million passenger trips in FY 2017.  The 

remainder of the Yuba-Sutter Transit system is operated as intercity commuter service to downtown 

Sacramento and rural routes to Live Oak and Wheatland and a number of Yuba County foothill 

communities. 

Within the urban area, the largest concentration of LEP persons is in Yuba City CDP with 10,927 

individuals representing 17.8 percent of the total population.  As noted above, the urban area is served 

by a comprehensive network of local fixed route and complementary demand response services 

operating six days a week.  The largest single concentration of LEP persons per capita is found in Live 

Oak with 1,982 individuals representing 25.4 percent of the total population.  Live Oak is served by a 

rural route deviation service that operates three times a day, five days a week. 

Based on the demographic analysis and the frequency of contact with the available services, Yuba-Sutter 

Transit considers access to its local fixed route services, demand response services within the urban area 

and the rural Live Oak deviated route as essential with respect to the LEP population.  Yuba-Sutter 

Transit will continue to assess the relative impact of these services on LEP individuals and employ 

effective means to provide language assistance for LEP persons to ensure meaningful access.   

4. The resources available to Yuba-Sutter Transit and the overall cost to provide LEP assistance. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit has in-house staff resources along with a number of outside community partners to 

assist LEP populations with accessing the agency’s programs, activities and services.  These include a 

number of bilingual bus drivers who represent a cross-section of the most common languages that are 

spoken in the service area including Spanish and Punjabi.  Several office staff members are also at least 

partially bilingual to assist LEP persons calling for route or schedule information or service reservations.  

This includes staff in both the operating office as well as the administration office.  These same staff 

members attend or accompany others to selected community events and outreaches where the need 

for their skills is expected.  

The primary passenger informational piece which covers both the local fixed route and demand 

response services is printed in both English and Spanish.  Vital documents, on-board posters and 

instructional signs are printed in both English and Spanish.  In addition, outreach materials are 

translated and printed in whatever language is deemed appropriate for selected community events 

expected to draw LEP populations.   



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 21 
 

 

Language Assistance Plan (LAP) 
 

Identifying LEP Persons Who Need Language Assistance 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will use any or all of the following means to identify those who need language 

assistance: 

 Examine records to see if requests for language assistance have been received in the past, either 

at meetings or over the phone, to determine whether language assistance might be needed at 

future events or meetings. 

 Regularly encourage and solicit input from bus drivers and other front-line staff and telephone 

personnel for feedback on how to identify LEP persons, what language issues are being 

encountered and how these issues might best be resolved.  Vehicle operators and other front-

line staff, like dispatchers, dial-a-ride schedulers, and service development planners, will be 

surveyed on their experience concerning any contacts with LEP persons during the previous 

year. 

 Have bi-lingual staff available at Yuba-Sutter Transit meetings and/or Census Bureau Language 

Identification Flashcards available to assist staff in identifying language assistance needs for 

future meetings. 

 Have a staff person greet participants as they arrive at Yuba-Sutter Transit sponsored outreach 

events.  By informally engaging participants in conversation, it is possible to gauge each 

attendee’s ability to speak and understand English and determine the need for language 

services at future events. 

Language Assistance Measures 

There are numerous language assistance measures available to LEP persons, including both oral and 

written language services. The following outlines the various ways in which Yuba-Sutter Transit staff will 

respond to LEP persons, whether in person, by telephone or in writing: 

 Yuba-Sutter Transit will continue to provide bilingual staffing, to the extent possible, at its 

Administrative offices and within its operations/dispatch staff to assist LEP persons with 

reservations, general information questions and trip planning. 

 Yuba-Sutter Transit will continue to provide vital transit service information to groups and 

organizations likely to include a high percentage of LEP individuals. 

 Yuba-Sutter Transit will network with local human service organizations that provide services to 

LEP individuals and seek opportunities to provide information on transit programs and services. 

 Yuba-Sutter Transit will continue to provide bilingual staff, to the extent possible, at community 

events. 

 Yuba-Sutter Transit will continue to encourage and solicit input, on no less than an annual basis, 

from bus drivers and other front-line staff on their experience concerning any contacts with LEP 

persons. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 22 
 

 Upon request, Yuba-Sutter Transit will make group training available to LEP persons with the 

assistance of bilingual staff. 

 Include language “Bilingual a Plus” on all agency recruitment notifications. 

 When an interpreter is needed for a language other than those spoken by available staff, in 

person or on the telephone, staff will attempt to access language assistance services from a 

professional translation service or qualified community volunteers. 

Outreach Techniques 

In order to ensure that LEP individuals are made aware of the availability of Yuba-Sutter Transit’s 

language assistance measures, the following will be provided: 

 Information in Spanish included in passenger materials, where appropriate 

 Spanish language assistance contact information, phone and email, posted on the agency 

website 

 To the extent possible, bilingual staff will continue to be available for in-person or phone 

customer service at the administrative offices 

Additionally, when staff prepares a vital document or schedules a meeting for which the target audience 

is expected to include LEP individuals, alternative language information will be included in related 

documents, meeting notices, flyers, and/or agendas based on the known LEP population.  These notices 

may be posted in the following locations: 

 Yuba-Sutter Transit Administrative offices 

 Yuba-Sutter Transit buses 

 Yuba-Sutter Transit website 

Such notices may also be posted or announced with local stakeholders, community centers and major 

route transfer points. 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will continue to work with in-house staff and community groups to identify 

opportunities to provide language assistance.  Yuba-Sutter Transit will also look for opportunities for 

targeted outreach especially at special events and community meetings. 

Staff Training 

The following training will be provided to Yuba-Sutter Transit staff: 

 Information on Yuba-Sutter Transit’s Title VI and LEP procedures and responsibilities 

 Description of language assistance services that are offered to the public 

 Documentation of language assistance requests 

 Use of the language-line service (over the phone interpretation provider) 

 How to handle a potential Title VI/LEP Complaint 

All training will emphasize the need to communicate effectively with LEP persons. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 23 
 

Monitoring and Updating the Plan  

In order to accurately monitor the success of its LAP, Yuba-Sutter Transit will regularly survey key 

program areas and assess major points of contact with the public to determine: 

 Overall use of essential services by LEP individuals 

 Volume of requests for information, trip planning, general assistance and/or the purchase of 

passes and tickets, over the phone and in-person from LEP individuals 

 Participation by LEP individual or groups in public meetings 

 Customer service interactions 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will update the LEP as required by applicable laws and regulations.  At a minimum, 

the plan will be reviewed and updated every three (3) years in conjunction with the Title VI Plan 

submission, or when data is available indicating that higher concentrations of LEP individuals are present 

in the service area.  Development of plan updates will include analysis of the following: 

 The number of documented LEP person contacts encountered annually 

 How the needs of LEP persons have or have not been addressed 

 The current LEP population in the service area 

 Whether the need for translation services has changed 

 Whether local language assistance programs have been effective and sufficient to meet the 

need 

 Whether Yuba-Sutter Transit’s financial resources are sufficient to fund the language assistance 

resources needed 

 Whether Yuba-Sutter Transit has fully complied with the goals of this LEP Plan 

 Whether Complaints have been received concerning Yuba-Sutter Transit’s failure to meet the 

needs of LEP individuals 

Yuba-Sutter Transit will remain in contact with community organizations or advocacy groups and 

regularly encourage and solicit internal feedback on the provision of meaningful access to LEP 

individuals. 

  



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 24 
 

Section 4:  Service Standards and Policies 

 

Introduction 
 

Title 49 CFR Section 21.5 states the general prohibition of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, 

or national origin. Section 21.5(b)(2) specifies that a recipient shall not “utilize criteria or methods of 

administration which have the effect of subjecting persons to discrimination because of their race, color, 

or national origin, or have the effect of defeating or substantially impairing accomplishment of the 

objectives of the program with respect to individuals of a particular race, color, or national origin.” 

Section 21.5(b)(7) requires recipients to “take affirmative action to assure that no person is excluded 

from participation in or denied the benefits of the program or activity on the grounds of race, color, or 

national origin.” Finally, Appendix C to 49 CFR part 21 provides in Section (3)(iii) that “[n]o person or 

group of persons shall be discriminated against with regard to the routing, scheduling, or quality of 

service of transportation service furnished as a part of the project on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin. Frequency of service, age and quality of vehicles assigned to routes, quality of stations serving 

different routes, and location of routes may not be determined on the basis of race, color, or national 

origin.” 

All fixed route transit providers are required to set service standards and policies for each specific fixed 

route mode of service they provide.  Yuba-Sutter Transit’s fixed route modes of service include local bus 

and commuter bus.  The following standards and policies address how service is distributed across the 

transit system, and ensure that the manner of the distribution affords users access to these assets. 

 

Service Standards 
 

FTA requires all fixed route transit providers to develop quantitative standards, for all fixed route modes 

of operation, for the indicators listed below. 

1. Vehicle Load 

Vehicle load can be expressed as the ratio of passengers to the total number of seats on a vehicle.  For 

example, on a sixteen-seat bus, a vehicle load of 1.5 means all seats are filled and there are 

approximately eight standees.  A vehicle load standard is generally expressed in terms of peak and off-

peak times.  Transit providers that operate multiple modes of transit must describe the specific vehicle 

load standards for peak and off-peak times for each mode of fixed route transit service, as the standard 

may differ by mode. 

The average of all loads during the peak operating period should not exceed the vehicles’ achievable 

capacities, which are 24 passengers for a 1600 cutaway bus, 40 passengers for a 2700 Optima/NABI bus, 

46 passengers for a 3100 Optima/NABI bus, 48 passengers for a 3200 Gillig bus, 51 passengers for a 

4100 Blue Bird commuter bus and 70 passengers for a 5700 MCI commuter coach. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 25 
 

Fixed Route Vehicle Load Standards 

Vehicle Type Average Passenger Capacities 

 
Local Bus 

Seated Standing Total Maximum Load 
Factor 

1600 Cutaway 16 8 24 1.5 
2700 Optima/NABI 27 13 40 1.5 
3100 Optima/NABI 31 15 46 1.5 
3200 Gillig 32 16 48 1.5 
Commuter Bus     
4100 Blue Bird 41 10 51 1.2 
5700 MCI 57 13 70 1.2 

 

As expressed in the above table, Yuba-Sutter Transit’s peak operating vehicle load standard is a factor of 

1.5 for local bus routes and 1.2 for commuter routes. 

2. Vehicle Headway 

Vehicle headway is the amount of time between two vehicles traveling in the same direction on a given 

line or combination of lines.  A shorter headway corresponds to more frequent service.  Vehicle 

headways are measured in minutes (e.g., every 15 minutes); service frequency is measured in vehicles 

per hour (e.g., 4 buses per hour).  Headways and frequency of service are general indications of the level 

of service provided along a route.   

As expressed in the 2015 Yuba-Sutter Short Range Transit Plan, the minimum standard is 60 minute 

headways for all local fixed routes.  The target frequency goal is to provide 30 minute service for all local 

routes that can achieve at least 15 passengers per hour, after a two year implementation period.  The 

current local route system configuration is detailed below. 

Route 1: Yuba City and Yuba College 

Route 1 operates primarily along an east / west alignment that connects Yuba City with Marysville and 

Linda.  This route is the spine of the system that connects major activity centers across the service area.  

Route 1 has a headway frequency of 30 minutes.  It operates from 6:24 am to 6:45 pm on weekdays and 

from 8:19 am to 5:45 pm on Saturdays. 

Route 2: Yuba City Loop  

Route 2 operates in two directions within central Yuba City extending from a northern boundary of 

Northgate Drive to the south along Lincoln Road. It serves the city center of Yuba City, including the 

Alturas & Shasta Terminal in the east and the Walton Terminal in the west.  The service frequency is 30 

minutes on weekdays and 60 minutes on Saturdays in both the clockwise and counter clockwise 

directions.  It operates from 6:17 am to 6:21 pm on weekdays and from 8:17 am to 5:21 pm on 

Saturdays. 

 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 26 
 

 

Route 3: Yuba College and Olivehurst 

Route 3 operates along a mostly north / south alignment in Linda and Olivehurst.  Its northern terminal 

is located at Yuba College. From there, the route heads westbound along North Beale Road to the 

Feather River Center area, which includes Walmart.  Two sheltered bus stops on either side of North 

Beale Road serve as the North Beale Transit Center.  Route 3 has a headway frequency of 30 minutes.  It 

operates from 6:09 am to 6:39 pm on weekdays and from 8:39 am to 5:39 pm on Saturdays. 

Route 4: Marysville Loop 

Route 4 operates in two directions in and around Marysville, extending from a northern boundary of 

22nd St. to the south along North Beale Road and Lindhurst Avenue and to the Peach Tree Clinic in Linda.  

It serves major retail locations, government offices, schools and medical centers.  The service frequency 

is 60 minutes in both the clockwise and counter clockwise directions.  It operates from 6:33 am to 6:33 

pm on weekdays and from 8:33 am to 5:26 pm on Saturdays. 

Route 5: Southwest Yuba City 

Route 5 serves the western and southern portions of Yuba City.  It covers the area from Butte House 

Road in the north to Bogue Road in the south.  The north / south alignment uses Harter Parkway, Stabler 

Lane and Walton Avenue as well as Lincoln Road and Garden Highway.  Route 5 has a headway 

frequency of 60 minutes.  It operates from 6:18 am to 6:22 pm on weekdays and 8:08 am to 5:22 pm on 

Saturdays. 

Route 6: Linda Shuttle 

Route 6 operates in Linda and serves Yuba College, Hammonton-Smartsville Road, North Beale Road and 

Feather River Boulevard.  It extends on Island Avenue to Grand Avenue and Pasado Road, across 

Highway 70 to Edgewater Circle.  Route 6 has a headway frequency of 60 minutes.  It operates from 6:20 

am to 6:13 pm on weekdays and 8:13 am to 5:13 pm on Saturdays. 

Sacramento Commuter and Midday Express Services 

The Sacramento Commuter express service operates peak hour weekday service in two corridors 

between Marysville/Yuba City and downtown Sacramento.  There are six Highway 99 schedules in the 

morning and seven in the afternoon.  The primary Highway 99 stops on most runs in the Yuba-Sutter 

Transit service area are the Yuba County Government Center, Walton Terminal (Sam’s Club Terminal) 

and the Bogue Road Park and Ride Lot.  In the morning, the first run starts at 5:20 am with the first drop-

off in Sacramento at 6:20 am.  The last run leaves Walton Terminal (Sam’s Club Terminal) at 6:45 am and 

the last drop-off in Sacramento for the Highway 99 commuter schedules is 7:55 am.  In the afternoon, 

the first Highway 99 run starts at 2:40 pm at the Yuba County Government Center with the first stop in 

downtown Sacramento at 3:30 pm and the last drop off at the Yuba County Government Center in 

Marysville at 6:35 pm. 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 27 
 

There are three Highway 70 Commuter schedules in the morning and three in the afternoon.  The 

primary Highway 70 stops in the Yuba-Sutter Transit service area are the Yuba County Government 

Center, the McGowan Park and Ride, and the Plumas Lake Park and Ride.  The first run starts at 5:15 am 

with the first drop-off in Sacramento at 6:10 am. The last run leaves Plumas Lake at 6:57 am and the last 

drop off in Sacramento for the morning Highway 70 schedules is 7:50 am.  In the afternoon, the first 

Highway 70 run starts at 4:05 pm at the first stop in downtown Sacramento and the last drop off at the 

Yuba County Government Center in Marysville is at 6:25 pm. 

There are also three round trip Midday Express schedules that operate to and from Sacramento.  The 

first run starts at the Walton Terminal (Sunsweet) at 7:55 am with drop-offs in Sacramento starting at 

9:00 am and returning to the Yuba County Government Center at 10:10 am.  The second starts at the 

Yuba County Government Center at 11:00 am, arrives in downtown Sacramento at 12:00 noon and ends 

at the Yuba County Government Center at 1:15 pm.  The last Midday run starts at the Yuba County 

Government Center at 1:15 pm with passenger drop-offs in Sacramento starting at 2:00 pm and it 

returns to the Walton Terminal at 3:30 pm. 

3. On-Time Performance 

On-time performance is a measure of runs completed as scheduled.  This criterion first must define what 

is considered to be “on time.”  Yuba-Sutter Transit considers it acceptable if a fixed route vehicle 

completes a scheduled run between zero and five minutes late in comparison to the established 

schedule.  On-time performance can be measured against route origins and destinations only, or against 

origins and destinations as well as specified time points along the route.  An acceptable level of 

performance for each mode of fixed route service is expressed as a percentage of runs completed 

system-wide or on a particular route within the standard. 

To ensure a high quality of service, Yuba-Sutter Transit’s minimum on-time standards for fixed routes 

are as follows: 

Fixed Routes – 0.5 percent of early stop departures within a given run and 95 percent of vehicles will 

complete their runs no more than 5 minutes late in comparison to the established schedule/published 

timetables 

4. Service Availability 

Service availability is a general measure of the distribution of routes within a transit provider’s service 

area.  Standards may be set such that a specified percentage of all residents in the service area are 

within a certain walking distance of bus service.   A standard might also indicate the maximum distance 

between stops or stations.  These measures related to coverage and stop/station distances might also 

vary by population density.  Commuter service availability standards might include a threshold of 

residents within a certain driving distance as well as within walking distance of the stations or access to 

the terminal. 

To the extent possible, Yuba-Sutter Transit will provide fixed route transit service to residential areas, 

major medical, shopping, government, employment centers, and activity centers that can support at 

least 15 passengers per revenue vehicle hour after a two year implementation period.  The local route 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 28 
 

system will be designed such that 85 percent of the urban area population resides within three-quarters 

(3/4) of a mile from a fixed route.  For inter-city or commuter services, the goal is to provide transit 

service to those employment centers that can support commuter service consistent with the service 

efficiency and effectiveness goals of Yuba-Sutter Transit. 

With respect to complementary paratransit services required in conjunction with the local fixed route 

system, 100 percent of all trips requested by ADA-qualified patrons within three-quarters (3/4) of a mile 

of the fixed route shall be accommodated. 

 

Service Policies 
 

FTA requires fixed route transit providers to develop a policy for each of the following service indicators.  

Transit amenities refer to items of comfort, convenience, and safety that are available to the general 

riding public. Fixed route transit providers must set a policy to ensure equitable distribution of transit 

amenities across the system.  Vehicle assignment refers to the process by which transit vehicles are 

placed into service in depots and on routes throughout the transit provider’s system.   

Transit Amenities Policy 

The following policies will be applied as funding allows: 

Installation of a shelter should be considered at bus stops with an average of 20 boardings per day or 

more.  Seating/benches should be considered at bus stops with an average of 10 boardings per day or 

more.  Passenger amenities such as system maps, signage, service messages, route schedules and/or 

waste receptacles will be posted at agency owned bus stops and shelters, based on average daily 

passenger boardings and space availability.      

Priority for benches and shelters should be given to bus stops serving senior housing or activity centers, 

or facilities that serve clients with mobility impairments. 

Vehicle Assignment Policy 

Fixed Route [Local and Commuter]: 

Bus assignments take into account the operating characteristics (i.e. physical size and passenger 

capacity) of the various buses within the Yuba-Sutter Transit local and commuter bus fleet, which are 

matched to the operating characteristics (i.e. turning restrictions and average passenger loads) of the 

route.  In the absence of specific operating requirements, vehicle assignments will be done so as to 

ensure a random rotation of fleet vehicles through the applicable routes in the system. 

Demand Response: 



Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program Page 29 
 

Except for situations requiring the assignment of a trip to a specific vehicle for reasons such as lift 

capacity, interior clearance or operating characteristics within the service area, demand response trips 

shall be assigned so as to ensure that vehicles are randomly operated in these services. 





















Exhibit C
Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program, August 2017

Table 1: Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Data - Statewide, Sutter/Yuba Counties and Census Designated Places within Yuba-Sutter Transit Service Area

Geography

Population 

Aged 5 and 

over

Speak 

English Only

% Speak 

English 

Only

Speak 

Other than 

English

% Speak 

Other than 

English Spanish Spanish LEP¹

Other Indo-

European

Other Indo-

European 

LEP¹

Asian and 

Pacific 

Island

Asian and 

Pacific 

Island LEP¹ Other Other LEP¹ Total LEP¹

% total 

pop 5 and 

over LEP¹

% non-English 

that are LEP¹

California 35,909,688 20,142,054 56.1% 15,767,634 43.9% 10,329,154 4,430,740 1,592,649 502,203 3,501,099 1,714,704 344,732 118,426 6,766,073 18.8% 42.9%

Sutter County, California 88,685 55,719 62.8% 32,966 37.2% 18,678 8,149 11,725 5,609 2,279 814 284 63 14,635 16.5% 44.4%

Yuba County, California 67,372 51,112 75.9% 16,260 24.1% 11,536 4,700 878 277 3,714 1,573 132 52 6,602 9.8% 40.6%

Sutter/Yuba 156,057 106,831 68.5% 49,226 31.5% 30,214 12,849 12,603 5,886 5,993 2,387 416 115 21,237 13.6% 43.1%

Yuba-Sutter Transit Service Area

Challenge-Brownsville CDP, California 788 788 100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0.0%

Dobbins CDP, California 612 612 100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0.0%

Linda CDP, California 16,429 10,382 63.2% 6,047 36.8% 4,338 1,768 124 24 1,534 643 51 12 2,447 14.9% 40.5%

Live Oak city, California 7,796 3,426 43.9% 4,370 56.1% 3,399 1,508 877 438 77 36 17 0 1,982 25.4% 45.4%

Loma Rica CDP, California 2,361 2,193 92.9% 168 7.1% 152 78 16 0 0 0 0 0 78 3.3% 46.4%

Marysville city, California 11,123 9,070 81.5% 2,053 18.5% 1,328 639 183 35 509 200 33 18 892 8.0% 43.4%

Olivehurst CDP, California 13,219 8,480 64.2% 4,739 35.8% 3,749 1,623 221 118 736 251 33 22 2014 15.2% 42.5%

Plumas Lake CDP, California 5,793 4,936 85.2% 857 14.8% 500 146 124 77 224 133 9 0 356 6.1% 41.5%

Wheatland city, California 3,388 2,672 78.9% 716 21.1% 458 145 23 0 235 112 0 0 257 7.6% 35.9%

Yuba City city, California 61,502 37,058 60.3% 24,444 39.7% 12,367 5,350 9,863 4,835 2,032 719 182 23 10927 17.8% 44.7%

Service Area Totals 123,011 79617 64.7% 43394 35.3% 26291 11257 11431 5527 5347 2094 325 75 18953 15.4% 43.7%

¹LEP = Limited English Proficiency defined as persons for whom English is not their primary language and speak English less than very well, not well, or not at all.

Source:  2011-2015 American Community Survey (ACS) Census



Appendix 1 

 

 YUBA-SUTTER TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
 RESOLUTION NO. 8-17 
 

ADOPTION OF THE YUBA-SUTTER TRANSIT TITLE VI PROGRAM 

AS REVISED AUGUST 17, 2017 
 
 
WHEREAS, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Federal statute provides that no person shall, on 

the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be 
denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity 
receiving Federal financial assistance; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Under Title VI, the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) has the responsibility to 

provide oversight of recipients and to enforce their compliance with Title VI, to ensure 
that recipients do not use DOT funds to subsidize discrimination based on race, color, or 
national origin; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Title 49 CFR Section 21.9(b) requires all recipients of Federal funds to document their 

compliance with DOT’s Title VI regulations by submitting a Title VI Program to their 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) regional civil rights officer once every three years 
or as otherwise directed by FTA; and, 

 
WHEREAS, The Title VI Program must be approved by the recipient’s Board of Directors or 

appropriate governing entity prior to submission to FTA: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Yuba-Sutter Transit Authority Board of Directors does 
hereby adopt the Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program as revised August 17, 2017 and does hereby 
authorize the Transit Manager to certify same by the following vote: 
 

Ayes: 
 

Noes: 
 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY INTRODUCED, PASSED AND 
ADOPTED BY THE YUBA-SUTTER TRANSIT AUTHORITY AT THE REGULAR MEETING THEREOF 
HELD ON AUGUST 17, 2017. 
 
 

                                                                        
       Preet Didbal, Chairman of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
                                                                  
Sandra Anderson 
Secretary to the Board 
  
P:\RESOLUTIONS\Resolution 8-17 Title VI Program August 2017.doc 



Appendix 2 

Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program, August 17, 2017 

 

List of Title VI Related Complaints/Lawsuits Filed Against the Yuba-

Sutter Transit Authority 

 

Yuba-Sutter Transit has not been involved in any transit-related Title VI investigations, complaints, or 

lawsuits. 



Appendix 3 

Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program, August 17, 2017 

 

Statement of the Racial Breakdown of Membership on Non-Elected 

Boards, Councils or Committees 

 

Yuba-Sutter Transit does not have any non-elected boards, committees or councils. 



Appendix 4 

Yuba-Sutter Transit Title VI Program, August 17, 2017 

 

Title VI Assurances, Dated August 31, 2011 

 























Passenger Vehicle Pass. Trips Est. Fare Fare Rev. Est. Farebox
Trips Serv. Hours Per VSH Revenue Per VSH Ratio

Fixed Route:
     July 2016 - June 2017 858,384 51,125.63 16.79 $556,772 $10.89 14.7%
     July 2015 - June 2016 971,606 52,472.09 18.52 $575,265 $11.86 16.5%
     Percent Change -11.7% -2.6% -9.3% -3.2% -8.2% -10.6%

Dial-A-Ride:
     July 2016 - June 2017 68,023 24,475.76 2.78 $130,601 $5.34 7.2%
     July 2015 - June 2016 70,047 24,771.22 2.83 $126,278 $5.45 7.6%
     Percent Change -2.9% -1.2% -1.7% 3.4% -2.0% -4.7%

Sacramento Services (Commuter & Midday):
     July 2016 - June 2017 130,627 13,449.03 9.71 $584,922 $43.49 58.8%
     July 2015 - June 2016 144,327 13,529.93 10.67 $625,504 $46.23 64.2%
     Percent Change -9.5% -0.6% -8.9% -6.5% -5.9% -8.5%

Foothill Route:
     July 2016 - June 2017 2,052 987.44 2.08 $2,270 $2.30 3.1%
     July 2015 - June 2016 2,107 1026.60 2.05 $3,119 $3.04 4.2%
     Percent Change -2.6% -3.8% 1.3% -27.2% -24.4% -26.0%

Live Oak Route:
     July 2016 - June 2017 3,557 863.32 4.12 $3,478 $4.03 5.4%
     July 2015 - June 2016 3,524 893.15 3.95 $3,907 $4.96 5.8%
     Percent Change 0.9% -3.3% 4.4% -11.0% -18.8% -6.9%

Wheatland Route:
     July 2016 - June 2017 572 463.58 1.23 $505 $1.09 1.5%
     July 2015 - June 2016 654 453.90 1.44 $734 $1.63 2.3%
     Percent Change -12.5% 2.1% -14.4% -31.2% -33.0% -34.8%

Systemwide Summary:
     July 2016 - June 2017 1,063,215 91,364.76 11.64 $1,278,548 $13.99 18.9%
     July 2015 - June 2016 1,192,265 93,146.89 12.80 $1,334,807 $15.02 20.9%
     Percent Change -10.8% -1.9% -9.1% -4.2% -6.9% -9.4%

Notes:
      1. All financial calculations are estimates pending final fiscal audits.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT
FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017


	Board Packet-Binder.pdf
	Letterhead & Footer
	MEETING NOTICE & AGENDA
	IV. Reports
	V. Correspondence/Information
	VII. Adjournment
	THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING IS SCHEDULED FOR THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2017
	AT 4:00 P.M. IN THE YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS



	YST MINUTES JULY 2017
	THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING IS SCHEDULED FOR UTHURSDAY, AUGUST 17, 2017
	AT 4:00 P.M. IN THE YUBA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS

	Jul 2017 Monthly
	Monthly Perf Rpt

	Advertising Contract Item III-D 8-17 Consent
	Passenger Policies & Procedures Item IV-A 8-17
	Passenger Code of Conduct 7-25-17 DRAFT v2
	Title VI Agenda Item IV-C 8-17-17
	Resolution 8-17 Title VI Program August 2017
	FY  17-18 Annual Report
	Quarterly Perf Rpt

	DISBURSEMENT LIST July 2017.pdf
	JULY 2017


	Yuba-Sutter_TitleVI-Program_DRAFT
	Title VI Program_2017.pdf
	TitleVI Program_6-19-14_Exhibits A-B.pdf
	Exhibit C.pdf
	Appendix 1_Draft.pdf
	Appendix 2.pdf
	Appendix 3.pdf
	Appendix 4_Cover.pdf
	Appendix 4_ Assurances.pdf




